
Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN AGENDA

Barbara Landry Meeting Room
2 Main Street

MONDAY, MARCH 28, 2022 6:30 PM

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance
  
3. Public Hearing
 3.1. Pursuant to RSA 31:95-b: III (a), the Amherst Board of Selectmen shall 

hold a public hearing in conjunction with its scheduled meeting  for the 
purpose of accepting unanticipated money in the amount of $1,500,000. 
The money is a grant from the Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances 
Remediation Loan Fund (PFAS RLF) allocated from the American Rescue 
Plan Act of 2021.
  

  
4. Citizens' Forum
  
5. Scheduled Appointments

 5.1. Amanda Morse, Opportunity Networks Application for use of Town 
Common, 5k  

 5.2. Use of Town Common Application, MacLeod Celebration of Life 
  
6. Administration
 6.1. Administrative Updates 
 6.2. PFAS Grant Application 
  
7. Staff Reports
 7.1. Lease agreement with Turf Tank Athletic Field Painter 
 7.2. Finance update 
 7.3. Cruiser Radio Purchase 
 7.4. Police Dept. Tree Work 

Page 1 of 54



 7.5. Seasonal Staff Wage increases 
  
8. Approvals
 8.1. AP, Payroll and Minutes Approvals 
  
9. Action Items
  
10. Old/New Business
  
 Adjournment
  
 Next Meeting: April 11, 2022

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.
When: Mar 28, 2022 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)
Topic: Board of Selectmen 03/28/2022
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85069781299
Or Telephone:  646 558 8656 
Webinar ID: 850 6978 1299

Page 2 of 54

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85069781299


The State of New Hampshire 
Department of Environmental Services 

 
Robert R. Scott, Commissioner 

www.des.nh.gov 
29 Hazen Drive • PO Box 95 • Concord, NH 03302-0095 

(603) 271-3503 • Fax: 271-2867 • TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 

 
 

 
March 11, 2022 
 

Dean Shankle 
Town of Amherst, Town Administrator 
2 Main Street 
Amherst, NH 03031 
 
Subject:   Amherst NH PFAS Rebate Program – Town of Amherst 
 
Dear Mr. Shankle, 

On March 8, 2022, the NH Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) completed their review of the 
Eligibility Request received March 2, 2022 for the Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances Remediation Loan Fund 
(PFAS RLF).  The NHDES authorizes an award of grant funds to the Town of Amherst for the following project: 
 
Project Description      Funding Award Amount 

Amherst NH PFAS Rebate Program    $1,500,000 
 
The next step to move forward with the project funding is to obtain the authority to accept the funds and 
submit a final application before August 1, 2022. The required documents are listed on the Final Application 
Checklist. Once the final application has been submitted, the funding agreement must be approved by the 
Governor and Executive Council.  

The PFAS RLF grant funding is allocated from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA). ARPA funds must 
be expended by the deadline established in the grant agreement but no later than December 31, 2026, which 
is the deadline established in the US Department of the Treasury Interim Final Guidance.  

We ask that you keep NHDES informed of progress made toward seeking the authority to accept funding. 
Should your project not move forward, please contact us as soon as possible. If you have any questions or 
would like to set up a meeting to review the process, please contact me at 603-271-8801 or 
amy.rousseau@des.nh.gov. 

Sincerely, 

 
Amy Rousseau 
PFAS Response Administrator | MtBE Remediation Bureau    
 

 

Page 3 of 54

https://onlineforms.nh.gov/app/#/formversion/e3e11744-123b-4439-af26-9192a6919466
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/app/#/formversion/e3e11744-123b-4439-af26-9192a6919466
mailto:amy.rousseau@des.nh.gov


Enriching Our Communities by Connecting Employers & Individuals with Opportunities to Succeed

Main Office:  11 Caldwell Drive, Amherst, NH 03031   603 883-4402   fax: 603 883-4468
116 Perimeter Road, Nashua, NH 03063   603 889-0796   fax: 603 546-0128

www.opportunitynetworks.org

March 7, 2022

Dear Amherst Selectmen,

I am contacting you on behalf of Opportunity Networks.  Opportunity Networks is a 501(c)3 non-profit in Amherst 
that serves adults with disabilities. We would like to host a 5K race/walk in Amherst on Saturday, October 1, 2022. 
The route would be the same one we used last year and used by the Amherst Junior Women’s Club for their 5K 
Turkey Trot and we would like the race to start at 10 am.

This will be our fourth road race and with the success of our previous years we’d like to have this race as an annual 
fundraising event and we will be working with North Star timing company again. We host 2 other fundraising 
events during the year for our agency, a golf tournament at the Amherst Country Club and a $10,000 Raffle at the 
River Casino in Nashua. Having a road race will allow our clients the opportunity to be participants and volunteers. 
It will also give our clients the opportunity to train for this race during their day program.

Thank you for your consideration on our request. If you need additional information, please contact me at
608-883-4402 or at amorse@opportunitynetworks.org.

Sincerely,

Amanda Morse
Administrative Assistant
Opportunity Networks Inc.
(603) 883-4402 X16
Fax: 603-883-4468

Page 4 of 54

mailto:amorse@opportunitynetworks.org


Enriching Our Communities by Connecting Employers & Individuals with Opportunities to Succeed

Main Office:  11 Caldwell Drive, Amherst, NH 03031   603 883-4402   fax: 603 883-4468
116 Perimeter Road, Nashua, NH 03063   603 889-0796   fax: 603 546-0128

www.opportunitynetworks.org

March 07, 2022

Dear Amherst Selectmen,

We are working with a local Timing Business, North Star, located in Amherst to assist us with this race. Mike Merra, 
the business owner informed us that a road closure permit was needed from the town to close Church Street from 
the intersection of Manchester Road and Middle Street.  This road closure would be from 7:30 to 12:00 on the day 
of the event. The course is the same course that is used by the AWJC for their annual Turkey Trout. The start/finish 
line will be in front of the Amherst Congregation Church.  We have been in touch with the church and are waiting 
an answer, in previous years they were in full support. 

We are renting 3 porta johns through Dave’s Septic for the event and wondering if there is a specific spot you 
would like us to put them.  In 2021 we had them along the fence of the common and I will have a delivery and 
pickup date closer to the event. We would also be requesting a police detail and EMT for the day of the event as 
well. We specifically would want a Police detail at the intersection on Boston Post Rd and New Boston Rd.  

We are very excited to be hosting this community event. This race will also allow our clients; adults who are living 
with disabilities have the opportunity to be active participants in this event.  In fact, our clients will be training for 
this race during their day program.

Thank you for your consideration on our request. If you need additional information, please contact me at
608-883-4402 or at amorse@opportunitynetworks.org.

Sincerely,

Amanda Morse
Fundraising & Event Coordinator
Opportunity Networks Inc.
(603) 883-4402 X16
Fax: 603-883-4468

Page 5 of 54

mailto:amorse@opportunitynetworks.org


Page 6 of 54



Page 7 of 54



Page 8 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Administrative Updates Department: Administration
Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
None

Page 9 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: PFAS Grant Application Department: Administration
Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: Dean Shankle

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The Town applied for and received our eligibility letter.  This allows us to put together a 
final application for grant funds.  Attached you will find the application.  The form part is 
done by hand because once you approve the application it needs to be typed into the 
form and submitted.  Much of this appears blank because it refers to a loan fund.  We 
are applying for a grant so it is not necessary to fill those sections out. It is also no 
necessary for us to fill out an environmental review or a Asset Management Plan, 
according to NH DES. 

The Planning Document, 9 pages into the final application, gives a summary of how the 
program will be set up.  I used information received from DES regarding the type of 
information they are going to want to see on the rebate applications.  I have written the 
plan so that I will be responsible for administering it and will be able to fund part-time 
help. 

The last page is the Certification of vote, which will be filled out after you vote.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
$1.5 million dollar grant, which includes funding for administration.  No tax dollars will 
be used. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
Will allow the town to provide financial assistance to people impacted by PFAS 
contamination in excess of state and federal levels. 
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Approval 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move that we indicate our willingness to enter into a grant agreement with the State of 
NH Department of Environmental Services for funding for a PFAS grant rebate project, 
and further that we authorize Town Administrator Dean Shankle to sign the grant 
agreement and execute any other documents which may be necessary to effectuate 
this grant agreement.  

Page 10 of 54



 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:
Approval. 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. BOS_03232022_Final_Application_packet

Page 11 of 54



Page 12 of 54



Page 13 of 54



Page 14 of 54



Page 15 of 54



Page 16 of 54



Page 17 of 54



Page 18 of 54



Page 19 of 54



Page 20 of 54



Page 21 of 54



Page 22 of 54



Page 23 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Lease agreement with Turf Tank 
Athletic Field Painter

Department: Parks & Recreation 
Department

Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: Craig Fraley

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The Amherst Recreation Department is looking to start a lease agreement with Turf 
Tank.  Turf Tank is a robot field painter that runs off GPS coordinates to paint perfect 
athletic fields.  The Robot makes the job of laying fields much more efficient as well as 
cost effective.  
 
Turf Tank has come out to Amherst to give us a demonstration twice and it is amazing 
how efficient this is.  In the demonstration the robot painted a soccer field.  What takes 
two staff members roughly 3 hours to complete took the robot 30 minutes.  The painter 
also used about 50% less paint when doing this.  
 
The total cost of the lease is $11,496 for the first year ($1500 for set up fees) and 
$9,996 for each year after that.  $6,000 of the yearly lease goes towards the purchase 
of the robot and another $2,000 includes paint for the robot.  The lease is a six-year 
agreement that we can opt out of yearly with 90 days’ notice.  To purchase a new robot 
would cost $45,000 and we would pay an additional $4,000 yearly fee (this includes 
paint).  Our plan is to split this robot between Soughegan High School, The Amherst 
Soccer Club and the Recreation department.  The Town of Amehrst will hold the lease 
agreement and will invoice SHS and Amherst Soccer Club for their portion of the 
fee.  This way we will only be paying an upfront fee of $3,832 and $3,332 in following 
years.  All fees would be paid for out of the Recreation Department 02 Revolving 
Fund.  
 
In a typical year we spend close to $8,000 on just the staff time to paint athletic fields 
and another $5,000 on supplies.  Instead, we can focus our staffing on other things 
while the robot paints the field.  This could include trimming around fences, mowing 
adjacent fields and trash pickup.   
 
  At this point, Turf Tank is the only company doing a lease program.   Other companies 
are purchase only.  We feel the lease program is better at this time so we can see how 
much time and money this saves us.  We are asking that this be considered a sole 
proprietor as there isn’t another company to gain bids from.  
 
For more information on Turf Tank please visit their website: https://turftank.com/us/
To see the turf tank in action, please view this informational video: 
https://youtu.be/GNXrI0zC9C8

Page 24 of 54

https://turftank.com/us/
https://youtu.be/GNXrI0zC9C8


 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
This lease would be paid for out of the 02 Revolving Fund.  
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
The Recreation Department recommends entering the lease purchase program with 
Turf Tank.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move that the Recreation Department enters the lease agreement with Turf Tank.  All 
fees will be paid out of the 02 Revolving Fund.  
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Please_DocuSign_Turf_Tank__Town_of_Amherst_

Page 25 of 54



Turf Tank USA Inc. Sub-Rental Agreement 

Appendix to Sub-Rental Agreement on Turf Tank One autonomous line marking robot 

Appendix (A) – Annual Appropriation Clause 

You believe that funds can and will be obtained in amounts sufficient to make all Rental Payments during the Rental 
term in each fiscal year. If your official governing body does not allow you funds for the succeeding fiscal year to 
continue such payments under the Sub-Rental Agreement, you may terminate the Sub-Rental Agreement at end 
of the current fiscal year, by giving (90) days prior written notice to us. Upon termination of the Sub-Rental 
Agreement, you will be responsible for the payment due prior to the end of the 90-day notice period referred to 
above. Upon the occurrence of this event, you shall, at your cost and expense, both restore the Equipment to its 
original condition (excepting only reasonable wear and tear) and return it to us in accordance with the terms set forth in 
the Sub-Rental Agreement. 

For the Customer: 

Title:

____________________ 

Full Legal Name:

____________________ 

Accepted by and Date: 

____________________ 

Customer Signature:  

____________________ 

Fo thr  Sue b lessor, Turf Tank USA Inc. 

Sub-Rental Agreement Commencement Date 

____________________  

Sub-Rental Agreement Number 

____________________ 

Accepted by and Date:

_____________________

Sublesso Sigr  nature: 

____________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 715BEAA2-7DAE-4B67-B745-7CA60AC317EA

Craig Fraley

Page 26 of 54



TURF TANK  Sub-Rental Agreement
CU

ST
OM

ER
 

Company Name Phone Number 

Billing Address State Zip Rental Order Requisition Number 

Equipment Location (if not same as above)

Country 

Send Invoice to Attention of: 

EQ
UI

PM
EN

T
IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N Equipment Description Model Number Serial Number Quantity Description (Attach Separate Schedule A If Necessary) 

PA
YM

EN
T

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. Sub-Rental Agreement: You (the “Customer”) agree to rent from us (the “Sub-lessor”) the 
equipment listed above and, on any schedule, attached to this Sub-Rental Agreement (the 
“Equipment”). Turf Tank ApS (the “Owner”) holds full and unconditional title to the Equipment, cf. 
section 2 below. The Owner has prior to this Sub-Rental Agreement rented the Equipment to the 
Sub-lessor on a separate rental agreement under which the Sub-lessor is entitled to sublease the 
Equipment on the Terms and Conditions stipulated in this Sub- Rental Agreement. This Sub-Rental 
Agreement is effective on the date that it is accepted and signed by us, and the term of this Sub-Rental 
Agreement begins on that date or any later date that we designate (the 
“Commencement Date”) and continues thereafter for the number of months indicated above. Rental 
Payments are due as invoiced by us. As you will have possession of the Equipment from the date of its 
delivery, if we accept and sign this Rental Agreement, you will pay us interim rent for the period from 
the date the Equipment is delivered to  you  until  the Commencement Date as reasonable 
calculated by us based on the Rental Payment, the number of days in that period, and a month of 30 
days. ONLY WE ARE AUTHORIZED TO WAIVE OR CHANGE ANY TERM, PROVISION OR 
CONDITION OF THE SUB- RENTAL AGREEMENT. You agree to pay when due, either directly or as 
reimbursement to us, all sales, use and personal property taxes and charges in connection with 
ownership and use of the Equipment.

2. Title: The Owner, Turf Tank ApS, a Danish private limited company validly incorporated 
under the laws of Denmark with company registration no. 36722436 and its registered address 
at Farøvej 31, DK-9800 Hjørring, has full and unconditional title to the Equipment. If this Sub-
Rental Agreement is deemed to be a security agreement, you grant us – and ultimately the Owner – a 
security interest in the Equipment and the proceeds thereof. You authorize us to sign and file Uniform 
Commercial Code (“UCC”) financing statements on the Equipment.

3. See Appendix B for Plus Subscription Warranty details. Equipment Use, Maintenance and Warranties: 
We transfer or sub-transfer to you any manufacturer warranties provided to us and/or the Owner. You 
are required at your cost to keep the Equipment in good working condition and to pay for all supplies and 
repairs. If the Rental Payments include the cost of maintenance and/or service provided by a third party, 
you agree that neither we nor the Owner are responsible to provide the maintenance or service and you 
will make all claims related to maintenance and service to the third party. You agree that any claims 
related to maintenance or service will not impact your obligation to pay all the Rental Payments when 
due.

4. Assignment: You agree not to transfer, sell sublease, assign, pledge or encumber either the 
Equipment or any rights under this Sub-Rental Agreement without our prior written consent. You agree 
that we may sell, assign, or transfer this Sub-Rental Agreement and the new owner will have the 
same rights and benefits we now have and will not have to perform any of our obligations and 
the rights of the new owner will not be subject to any claims, defenses, or setoffs that you may have 
against us, the Owner or any third party.

5. Risk of Loss: You are responsible for all risks of loss or damage to the Equipment and if any loss 
occurs, you are required to satisfy all of your Sub-Rental Agreement obligations. Neither we nor the Owner 

are responsible for any losses or injuries caused by the Equipment and you will reimburse us and/or the 
Owner and defend us and/or The Owner against any such claims. 

6. End of Sub-Rental Agreement: At the end of the rental term, you shall return the Equipment in good working 
condition at your cost to us or the Owner.

7. Default and Remedies: You are in default on this Sub-Rental Agreement if: a) you fail to pay a Rental Payment 
or any other amount when due; or b) you breach any other obligation under this Sub-Rental Agreement or any 
other (Rental or Sub-Rental) Agreement with us. If you are in default, we may: a) declare the entire balance of 
unpaid Rental Payments for the full term under the Sub-Rental Agreement immediately due and payable to us; b) 
sue you for and receive the total amount due under the Sub-Rental Agreement plus the Equipment’s anticipated 
end of Sub-Rental Agreement fair market value the (“Residual”) with future Rental Payments and the Residual 
discounted to the date or default at the lesser of (i) per annum rate equivalent to that of U.S. Treasure constant 
maturity obligation (as reported by the U.S. Treasure Department) that would have a repayment term equal to the 
remaining term of the Sub-Rental Agreement, all as reasonably determined by us, or (ii) 3%, plus reasonable 
collection and legal cost; c) charge you interest on all monies due at the rate of 18% per year or the highest rate 
permitted by law from the date of default; and d) require that you immediately return the Equipment to us or we 
may peaceably repossess it. Any return or repossession will not be considered a termination or cancellation of 
this Sub-Rental Agreement. If the Equipment is returned or repossessed, we will sell or re-rent the Equipment at 
the terms we determine, at one or more public or private sales, with or without notice to you, and apply the net 
proceeds (after deducting any related expenses) to your obligations. You remain liable for any deficiency with 
any excess being retained by us.

7.1 Default by the Sublessor – subrogation by the Owner: Should the Sublessor default on the rental agreement 
with the Owner of the Equipment, you accept that the Owner will have the right to subrogate into the Sublessor’s 
legal position under this Sub-Rental Agreement and thus become a party (the new lessor) to this Sub-Rental 
Agreement assuming the same rights and obligations under the Sub-Rental Agreement as the Sublessor prior to 
its default. The Owner will give you a prompt notice about the Sublessor’s default and that any and all payments 
pending or due under this Sub-Rental Agreement by you at the time of the Sublessor’s default can only be made 
in full discharge to the Owner of the Equipment.

8. Miscellaneous: You agree this Sub-Rental Agreement is a “Finance Lease” as defined in Article 2A of the 
UCC. You acknowledge we have given you the name of the Owner and agree that you may have rights under 
this contract with the Owner and you may contact the Owner for a description of these rights. If requested, you 
will sign a separate Equipment acceptance certificate. This Sub-Rental Agreement was made in Georgia (GA), 
is to be performed in NH and shall be governed in accordance with the laws of NH. You agree that the 
Equipment will only be used for business purposes and not for personal, family or household use, and will not 
be moved from the above location without our consent. We, or whoever we authorize hereto, may inspect the 
Equipment during the term of this Sub-Rental Agreement. You agree that a facsimile copy of this Sub-Rental 
Agreement with facsimile signatures may be treated as an original and will be admissible as evidence of this 
Sub-Rental Agreement.

C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 G
U

A
R

A
N

TY
 

&
 S

IG
N

A
TU

R
E

SU
B

-L
ES

SO
R

 

Title Date  Full Legal Name 

TURF TANK 
Turf Tank, 3330 Cobb Parkway NW, Suite 324-380, Acworth, GA 30101, USA.  

Rental Agreement Commencement Rental  Agreement Number Date Accepted by 

City 

State Zip City 

Number of
Payments

Payment Frequency         
 Annual Other

+

+

+

Rental
Payment

+

+

+

Applicable
Sales Tax

=

=

=

Total Rental
Payment Currency

Term
(Months)

Total Payment 
Term 

Installation Fee
1st period Payment
(After Install)
Other

Total Payment
Enclosed

+

+

+

=

New Used 

Quarter 

Signature 

You agree that this is a non-cancellable Sub-Rental Agreement with exception to Appendix A.

I unconditionally guarantee prompt payment of all the Customer’s obligations.

LE
SS

EE
 

A
C

C
EP

TA
N

C
E The Equipment has been received, put in use, is in good working order and is satisfactory and acceptable.

Title Date  Full Legal Name Signature 

Amherst Parks and Recreation United States +16036734900

4 Cross Rd Amherst NH 03031

Turf Tank ONE Robot PLUS 1 GPS Line Marking Robot ✔

✔ 6 $9,996 $59,976

USD

72

$61,476

$1,500

$9,996

$11,496

DocuSign Envelope ID: 715BEAA2-7DAE-4B67-B745-7CA60AC317EA

Craig Fraley

Page 27 of 54



Component List ‐ Warranty parts Service Component List ‐ Wear and tear parts

Turf Tank Warranty  Turf Tank Service Agreement

Plus ProParts Basic Plus Pro Parts Basic

√
Front Console √ √ √ Pump

Control Unit √ √ √ Solenoid

√

Rover √ √ √ Hoses √

Harness √ √ √ Suction rod √

Tablet  √ √ √ Disc √

Base Station √ √ √ Deflector √

Robot Chassis √ √ √ Wheels √
Wheel Motors √ √ √ Robot Battery √
Battery Box √ √ √ Courtesy robot (If necessary) √

Main Breaker 30 amp √
Actuator √

Above Warranty does not cover breakdowns and general repairs directly caused by the 
owner/operator neglect, accidental damage, abuse or misuse, including inadequate cleaning and 

improper storage.

Basic & Plus Service Agreement: No service components covered
Basic & Plus Service Agreement: All extra wear and tear parts listed above will have 20% discount to 
listed price within 30 days of install date. Labor costs for changing the components will not be covered 

by the service agreement.
Pro Service Agreement: Customer will receive 1 "Service Kit" in the start of the subscription and will 
also receive 1 "Service Kit" listed below one time per year. Labor costs for changing the components 

will be covered.
Service Kit: Includes 1‐Solenoid, 1‐Pump, 1‐ Suction rod assembly, 1‐ tubing set. Available for seperate 

puchase as well at discounted rate.

Safety Bumper ‐ Rear √

All components are only covered in year 1 of the warranty, coverage of components in followings 
years shown in above table.

● Basic warranty depending on subscripƟon duraƟon  ●  Plus warranty depending on subscripƟon
duration  ●  Pro warranty depending on subscripƟon duraƟon

Safety Bumper ‐ Front √

DocuSign Envelope ID: 715BEAA2-7DAE-4B67-B745-7CA60AC317EA

Page 28 of 54



Town of Amherst - Plus Subscription Quote

Reference: 20220310-154855525 

Quote created: March 10, 2022 

Quote expires: June 8, 2022

Quote created by: Mike Aveni

Regional Territory Manager – Atlantic

Northeast

mike.aveni@turftank.com

+1 (781) 775-3736

Comments from Mike Aveni

Implementation is a one-time fee.

If ordered this spring, the annual payment could come from next year's fiscal budget after July 1.

Products & Services

Item & Description Quantity Unit Price Total

US - Turf Tank Plus Package - Upfront

Implementation Cost
Includes:

- Configuration & Shipping of Robot
- Secure Inventory & Lock in Installation Date
- Product Training & Online Resources

1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

US - Turf Tank Plus Package
Includes:

- GPS Paint Robot + GPS Package
- Continuous Software Improvements
- Free Form Text Creation
- Standard Geometry Package
- Extended Geometry Package
- Paint: $2,000 Allotment of Paint (White)
- (2) Robot Batteries
- Customer Support: Normal Business Hours 
(Mon-Fri)
- Hardware Warranty Program: Limited 

1 $9,996.00 / year $9,996.00 / year

Amherst Parks and Recreation

4 Cross Rd

Amherst, NH 03031

United States

Craig Fraley

Recreation Director

cfraley@amherstnh.gov

6036736248

DocuSign Envelope ID: 715BEAA2-7DAE-4B67-B745-7CA60AC317EA

Page 29 of 54



(Excludes Consumables)
- Standard Turf Tank Accessories

Subtotals

Annual subtotal $9,996.00

One-time subtotal $1,500.00

Total $11,496.00

Signature

Signature Date

Printed name

Questions? Contact me

Mike Aveni

Regional Territory Manager – Atlantic Northeast

mike.aveni@turftank.com

+1 (781) 775-3736

Turf Tank

3330 Cobb Parkway NW, Suite 324-380

Acworth, GA 30101

United States

DocuSign Envelope ID: 715BEAA2-7DAE-4B67-B745-7CA60AC317EA

Craig Fraley

Page 30 of 54



Intelligent Marking USA, Inc. 

dba Turf Tank 

33330 Cobb Parkway NW, Suite 324-380, Acworth, GA 30101 
Phone: 877-396-4094| billing@turftank.com 

BUSINESS CONTACT INFORMATION 

Company Name 

DBA (if different) 

Accounts Payable Contact 

AP Phone Fax AP Email 

Address 

City State ZIP Code 

Are you sales tax exempt?  _____Yes      _____No 

State:

Tax Exempt # 

Purchase order Required?     ____Yes        ____No 

Payment Options 

ACH automatic draft? ___Yes     ___No, if yes signed form required 

Credit card auto monthly? ___Yes     ___No, if yes signed form required 
1. All invoices are to be paid 30 days from the date of the invoice.

2. If tax exempt certificate required.

3. If automatic payments are desired a form will be sent for completion.

Signature: 

Printed Name: 

Date: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 715BEAA2-7DAE-4B67-B745-7CA60AC317EA

*You do not have to be 
the main A/P person to 
sign this.

Tax Exempt # (if necessary)

Fax # (if necessary)

Page 31 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Finance update Department: Finance Department
Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: Debbie Bender

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
This is my second week on the job and things are going as expected. Right now I am 
finding problems faster than I can fix them! But we have gotten things more organized. I 
also have a better understanding of the issues that need attention. And slowly but 
surely, getting access to bank accounts, websites and other information needed to get 
things back on track. People have been very helpful. Pam is doing a good job and is an 
asset to the department.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
None

Page 32 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Cruiser Radio Purchase Department: Police Department
Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: Mark Reams

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
Purchase of two-way radio for replacement cruiser.  Radio is same make and model in 
use with remainder of current fleet.  Purchase exceeds the $5,000 purchase threshold 
requiring three bids; however, purchase stands as a sole source bid from the sole 
manufacturer and vendor, Morotola Soloutions.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
$5,621.07
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
N/A
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Award sole source bid to Motorola Solutions.
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Move to award sole source bid for purchase of crusier radio in the amount of $5,621.07 
to Motorola Solutions.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 20220321095052

Page 33 of 54



Page 34 of 54



Page 35 of 54



Page 36 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Police Dept. Tree Work Department: Public Works
Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: Eric Slosek

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
During recent work/maintenance on the radio tower behind the police station, it was 
discovered that several large pine trees are now obstructing a direct line of sight 
between the PD radio tower antenna and the antenna on the Pennichuck water 
tower.  Mark Reams asked the DPW for assistance in taking down these trees.  Several 
of the trees are located on private property.  Mark spoke with the residents and they 
gave the town permission to take down the trees.

The exact location of the trees poses some challenges as a large crane is needed to 
complete the job.  The Town is currently under contract with Gate City Tree Service 
LLC for our routine and emergency tree work.  After looking at the job, Gate City Tree 
explained they would need to rent a larger crane and would not be able to complete this 
work at our contracted rate.  In total, we solicited three prices, including a price from 
Gate City Tree.  Souhegan Valley Tree Service had the low bid of $5,500.00.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
$5,500.00 from 01-4312-40-2470 (Tree Care)
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Award work to Souhegan Valley Tree Service.
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to award the tree work behind the police station to Souhegan Valley Tree 
Service, LLP, for the amount of $5,500.00.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. PD tree work award

Page 37 of 54



Page 38 of 54



Page 39 of 54



Page 40 of 54



Page 41 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Seasonal Staff Wage increases Department: Parks & Recreation 
Department

Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: Craig Fraley

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
As part of the Parks and Recreation Departments FY23 Strategic Plan, the department 
put forward upgrading the seasonal staff wage scale to allow us to be more competitive 
in the job market.  This plan was approved by the BOS in late fall of 2021.  Part of this 
plan is to hire seasonal staff at their new rates for the summer season.  This pay 
increase will happen before the new fiscal year but will have no impact on the budget 
as all seasonal staff are paid out of the revolving fund.  Most staff start at the beginning 
of June, so rather than filing the paperwork a second time, we are asking that we have 
the ability to bring staff on at their new rate.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
No impact on the budget since all staff are paid out of the revolving fund.  
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
N/A
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
I reccomend this.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to allow the Recreation Department to hire the summer seasonal staff at their 
FY23 wage at their start date for the 2022 summer season.  
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
None

Page 42 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: AP, Payroll and Minutes Approvals Department: Finance Department
Meeting Date: March 28, 2022 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Approvals:
  
    Payroll
       AP1~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of 
$224,992.95 dated March 24, 2022, subject to review and audit. 
  
   Accounts Payable
  
    AP2 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$44,088.17 dated March 17, 2022, subject to review and audit. (NH DMV)
  
    AP3 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$625,607.15 dated March 15, 2022, subject to review and audit. (Vendors)
  
    Minutes
     ~ I move to approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of March 14, 2022.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2022.03.14 BOS_DRAFT dp_rvw

Page 43 of 54



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES

Barbara Landry Meeting Room
2 Main Street

Monday, March 14, 2022, 6:00PM

1 1. Call to Order
2 Chairman Peter Lyon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
3
4 Attendees: Chairman Peter Lyon, Selectman Bill Stoughton, Selectman John D’Angelo, 
5 Selectman Tom Grella, and Selectman Danielle Pray
6 Other persons present during Nonpublic Session: Town Administrator Dean Shankle, Jared 
7 Hardner, Rob Clemens, and Jamin Warren.
8
9        2.    Non-Public Session

10 2.1. Non-Public Session per RSA 91-A:3 II(d) Consideration of the acquisition,
11 sale, or lease of real or personal property which, if discussed in public,
12 would likely benefit a party or parties whose interests are adverse to those
13 of the general community.
14
15 A MOTION was made by Chairman Lyon and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to enter 
16 into Non-Public Session at 5:52pm.
17 Voting via a roll call vote: Selectman Lyon – aye, Selectman D’Angelo – aye, Selectman Pray 
18 – aye, Selectman Stoughton – aye, Selectman Grella – aye. Motion passed 5-0-0.
19
20 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to exit the 
21 Non-Public Session at 6:25pm.
22 Voting via a roll call vote: Selectman Lyon – aye, Selectman D’Angelo – aye, Selectman Pray 
23 – aye, Selectman Stoughton – aye, Selectman Grella – aye. Motion passed 5-0-0.
24
25 No motions were made, no votes were taken during Non-Public Session.
26
27 Public Session:
28
29 Attendees: Chairman Peter Lyon, Selectman Bill Stoughton, Selectman John D’Angelo, 
30 Selectman Tom Grella, and Selectman Danielle Pray
31
32 Also present: Town Administrator Dean Shankle, and Recording Secretary Kristan Patenaude 
33
34 Chairman Lyon reconvened Public Session at 6:30pm. 
35
36 3.  Pledge of Allegiance – led by Selectman Bill Stoughton.
37
38 4.   Public Hearing 

Page 44 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 2 OF 11

39 4.1 RSA 31:95-b: III (a), Acceptance of Unanticipated Funds Over $10,000
40 Chairman Lyon explained that this public hearing is regarding grant funding for the Bicycle & 
41 Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC). 
42
43 Chris Buchanan, Chair of BPAC, explained that the Bean Foundation has awarded $10,480 to 
44 Amherst for permanent eco-counters. These funds will allow for the purchase of two 
45 multimodal counters, placed in the ground, to count data for cyclist and pedestrian use of 
46 infrastructure in Town. He is suggesting placing these along the Amherst Street sidepath.
47
48 A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to enter 
49 into a Public Hearing per RSA 31:95-b: III (a) at 6:33pm. 
50 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
51
52 In response to a question from Selectman Pray, Chris Buchanan explained that the counters 
53 use infrared sensors, and so must be placed facing away from the roadway. He would suggest 
54 placing one counter closer to the Village and one closer to Milford along the sidepath.
55
56 In response to a question from Selectman Stoughton, Chris Buchanan explained that the data 
57 collected from these counters can be used to substantiate usage of the new infrastructure. The 
58 data could be used to show that the route is being used and does serve the Town.
59
60 It was noted that Chris Buchanan will be back before the Board before spending the grant 
61 funds for this project, after discussing proposed locations with DPW.
62
63 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to close 
64 the Public Hearing. 
65 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
66
67 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
68 accept the grant from the Bean Foundation in the amount of $10,480. 
69 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
70
71 5.   Board of Selectmen Reorganization
72 A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to nominate 
73 Peter Lyon as Chair of the Board of Selectmen. 
74 Voting: 4-0-1; motion carried. [J. D’A. abstaining]
75
76 A MOTION was made by Chairman Lyon and SECONDED by Selectman Stoughton to 
77 nominate Tom Grella as Vice Chair of the Board of Selectmen. 
78 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
79
80 A MOTION was made by Chairman Lyon and SECONDED by Selectman Stoughton to 
81 nominate Danielle Pray as Secretary of the Board of Selectmen. 
82 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
83
84 6.   Board Appointments
85 6.1. Appointments for Planning Board and Master Plan Steering Committee

Page 45 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 3 OF 11

86 A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to appoint 
87 Selectman Stoughton as the Selectmen’s representative to the Planning Board. 
88 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
89
90 Selectman D’Angelo noted that he would be happy to remain as the alternate rep.
91
92 The Board reviewed its other board/committee appointments:
93 Conservation Commission: Lyon BPAC: Lyon
94 Heritage Commission: Grella CIP Committee: D’Angelo
95 Historic District Commission: Grella Highway Safety Committee: D’Angelo
96 Recreation Commission: Pray Stormwater Committee: Grella
97 Roads & Bridges Commission: Grella Schools: D’Angelo
98 Cemetery Trustees: Lyon Library Trustees: Pray
99 Trustees of the Trust Funds: D’Angelo Master Plan Steering Committee: Pray

100 NRPC:Pray Legislative liaison: Pray
101
102 7.   Citizen’s Forum 
103 Stephen Valley, 11 Nathaniel Drive, addressed the Board regarding noise concerns. He 
104 explained that other towns have noise ordinances as an important communication tool for the 
105 police and code enforcement officers to tackle issues as they arise. A noise ordinance would 
106 allow Amherst to be proactive, instead of reactive to concerns. He explained that there is a 
107 property in his neighborhood on which target shooting occurs for an extensive number of 
108 hours at a time (1-3+ hours). This happens on a regular basis and has made it so that he, and 
109 other neighbors, cannot enjoy their properties while it is occurring. He noted that the shooting 
110 registered at 94 decibels in his yard, with decibels over 85 being found to contribute to 
111 hearing loss. He stated that the shooting has led to a stressful and undesirable environment in 
112 the neighborhood. He explained that he believes a noise ordinance could be crafted to allow 
113 for noisy activities to occur on larger tracts of land, but possibly not in smaller neighborhoods. 
114 He explained that there is also a safety factor at hand, as neighbors can visually see the 
115 shooting from the roadway. As a gunowner himself, he does not wish to remove anyone’s 
116 rights, but would like for this stressful situation to be resolved.
117
118 In response to a question from Chairman Lyon, Mr. Valley stated that he and his neighbors 
119 have reached out to the Police Department on numerous occasions. The Police Department 
120 has noted that there is nothing they can do, as the Town does not have a noise ordinance. 
121 Chairman Lyon suggested that Mr. Valley ask someone from the Police Department to 
122 respond while the shooting is taking place. 
123
124 Chairman Lyon explained that this item was reviewed by Town Counsel and, unfortunately, it 
125 does not appear that the Board has much purview in the situation. The memo mentions RSA 
126 159:26, regarding the State jurisdiction over firearms. That RSA notes that no municipal 
127 ordinance may regulate the “use” of firearms. Due to this RSA, Town Counsel believes that, 
128 while the Town could craft a noise ordinance it would not be able to call out firearms in the 
129 ordinance and regulate their “use.”
130
131 Mr. Valley explained that a noise ordinance would not limit the use of firearms but may make 
132 directives toward sound buffers that need to be in place. He explained that that a noise 

Page 46 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 4 OF 11

133 ordinance would not prevent someone from shooting at a gun club or shooting range but may 
134 limit the use of firearms within close proximity of other homes.
135
136 Chairman Lyon also referenced RSA 644:13, regarding the unauthorized use of firearms and 
137 it being illegal to discharge a firearm within any contiguous area containing 6 or more 
138 buildings which are used as either part-time or permanent dwellings and the spaces between 
139 them where each such building is within 300 feet of at least one of the others, plus a perimeter 
140 300 feet wide around all the buildings in such area. He explained that Mr. Valley could check 
141 and see if his neighborhood would fall within this RSA and, if so, ask the Police Department 
142 for enforcement.
143
144 Selectman Stoughton stated that he is sympathetic with Mr. Valley’s concern. This is a 
145 difficult item, as the Board does not have it within its authority to restrict the use of firearms, 
146 even as part of a noise ordinance.
147
148 In response to a question from Selectman Stoughton, Mr. Valley explained that he has been 
149 trying to contact and reach a compromise with his neighbor regarding this issue for over 3 
150 years, unsuccessfully. 
151
152 Selectman D'Angelo suggested that Mr. Valley may want to speak with the State 
153 Representatives, in hopes of enacting change at the State level. 
154
155 8.    Scheduled Appointments 
156 8.1   Ryan Cray, Town Common Use Request: Cathy Cray Memorial 5K
157 Ryan Cray explained that he is requesting the use of the Town Common on July 16, 2022, to 
158 host a charity 5K event for the White Ribbon Project, in honor of his mother, Cathy Cray.
159
160 A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Stoughton to grant 
161 permission to Ryan Cray to host a 5K charity event on July 16, 2022. 
162 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
163
164 8.2 Chris Buchanan, BPAC updates
165 Chris Buchanan explained that he will speak with Town Administrator Shankle regarding the 
166 best way to pull data from the multimodal counters, previously discussed. The data can either 
167 be pulled by hand, or via a mobile device that costs approximately $420/year/counter.
168
169 Chris Buchanan explained that the BPAC is planning an opening ceremony for the Amherst 
170 Street sidepath on May 14, 2022, at 11am. This will include a brief ceremony to 
171 commemorate construction of the sidepath, along with dedicating it to the memory of Carolyn 
172 Mitchell.
173
174 Chris Buchanan noted that engineering and survey data of the Boston Post Road crossing at 
175 Honey Pot Pond has been completed. The data shows that a sidepath in this area is feasible 
176 and that there is plenty of right-of-way to accommodate the project. The Town recently passed 
177 Article 30 – for design engineering work to occur on the Village Streets project. He is 
178 working with the DPW regarding finding an engineering firm to do this work.
179

Page 47 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 5 OF 11

180 Chris Buchanan requested that the Board reach out to the Milford Board of Selectmen for an 
181 update on the interjurisdictional grant funding application.
182
183 Chris Buchanan noted that the updated NH DOT 10-year plan continues to have project 
184 #42593, a portion of the Baboosic Greenway, which is scheduled for work between 2026-
185 2029. This would consolidate and upgrade the route from Baboosic Lake Rd. to Walnut Hill 
186 Rd. This is expected to include a timber boardwalk to the Meeting Place Mall. BPAC has 
187 obtained 1 easement along the route and is in discussion with landowners along 8 additional
188 parcels. The Town of Bedford recently contacted BPAC and to explain that they are exploring 
189 purchasing over 1 mile of the abandoned rail bed in Bedford. They have town staff who are 
190 now actively working on advancing the project. One landowner along the route owns parcels 
191 in the Town of Amherst as well as the Town of Bedford. It is likely that the easement the 
192 Town has already developed will be satisfactory for the landowner. The Bedford Town 
193 Council will need to become involved in this easement process, as they will have to be the
194 easement holder for the Bedford parcel. BPAC is requesting that the Board consider helping 
195 in reaching out to the Bedford Town Council to inform them of this need.
196
197 Chris Buchanan explained that the BPAC continues to work with DPW on the section of road 
198 between Boston Post Road and Courthouse Road, regarding options for extending the 
199 Amherst Street sidepath. He explained that the Board may need to write a letter to the State 
200 regarding a verbal agreement for a painted multimodal treatment over the bridge crossing on 
201 Amherst Street and the extension to Courthouse Rd.
202
203 Chris Buchanan explained that this May, the NRPC will be soliciting formal requests to 
204 include projects in the regional Transportation Improvements Program (TIP). This plan is
205 the foundation for the NHDOT 10-year plan and is the fundamental basis for establishing an
206 infrastructure idea as an “official project”. Adding a project to this plan can significantly aid 
207 in establishing the value of a project in the eyes of grant-funding agencies. This also requires 
208 no explicit commitment, other than stating that if the project were one day funded, the town 
209 would do its part to make it happen. These projects can only be submitted by Town staff with 
210 consent of the Board. There are several projects that the Town of Amherst should consider 
211 adding to the TIP:
212 ▪ The village area project
213 ▪ The entire Baboosic Greenway, whether or not it is broken into segments, including a   
214 12x12 box culvert under NH101 near Boston Post Road.
215 ▪ SB707-FN 2020’s proposal for a sidepath along NH122 from Amherst St to Stearns 
216 Rd.
217
218 Regarding the proposed advisory shoulder treatment along Old Manchester Road, DPW is 
219 organizing a final round of public input by neighborhood residents. This will likely involve 
220 one more information session before DPW and BPAC return to the Board for project 
221 approval. This project should be an example of a neutral cost project to improve low-volume 
222 multimodal access without costing more than line striping. If the project is approved, it may 
223 be included in the 2022 line striping bid.
224

Page 48 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 6 OF 11

225 Finally, Chris Buchanan explained that the BPAC is interested in becoming involved with the 
226 Master Plan update process. Selectman Stoughton suggested that Chris Buchanan reach out to 
227 Tracie Adams, current Vice Chair of the Master Plan Steering Committee.
228
229 Selectman Stoughton suggested the Town also look into using volunteers to collect data from 
230 the multimodal counters.
231
232 9.    Administration
233 9.1 Administrative Updates
234 Town Administrator Shankle explained that the State has established that the Town is eligible 
235 for the PFAS funding. The next step will be to hold a public hearing to accept the $1.5M 
236 funds. He explained that he and Chairman Lyon will sit down to review the O&M manual for 
237 the community septic system at Baboosic Lake with Sue McCarthy. He also noted that there 
238 are new bathrooms and floors being installed in the Buck Meadow clubhouse.
239
240 9.2 Town Administrator and land purchases
241 Chairman Lyon explained that this request is to allow for the Town Administrator to sign 
242 future purchase and sale agreements for land acquisition on behalf of the Board. This would 
243 be done only after Board approval.
244
245 A MOTION was made by Selectman Stoughton and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 
246 designate the Town Administrator to sign potential purchase and sale agreements, as 
247 advocated by the Conservation Commission upon direction from the Chair that such a 
248 purchase was approved by the Board of Selectmen. 
249 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
250
251 The Board discussed that the lights in front of Town Hall were recently updated to blue and 
252 yellow lights to show support to the Ukrainian people.
253
254 A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman Stoughton to 
255 authorize continuing the display of yellow and blue lights in front of Town Hall until 
256 Memorial Day. 
257 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
258
259 10.  Staff Reports
260 10.1 COVID 19 Task Force Update
261 Jennifer Stover explained that the COVID 19 Task Force updated masking guidance on 
262 Monday, February 28th for all Town Buildings. Department Heads were alerted to the update 
263 to the guidance and signage change: “Masks are optional. Please respect other people’s 
264 choices”.
265
266 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
267 approve the recommendations from the COVID 19 Task Force regarding optional mask usage 
268 in Town Buildings. 
269 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
270
271 10.2 Town Hall water damage repair

Page 49 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 7 OF 11

272 Deputy DPW Director, Eric Slosek, explained that there was a water leak in the sprinkler 
273 system in Town Hall on January 23rd. Since then, five bidders were solicited for the project, 
274 and Primex gave an estimated cost. Only one local company, Northern Improvements, bid on 
275 the project at $8,640. There is a $1,000 deductible due to Primex for the project.
276
277 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
278 award the work to repair the water damage at Town Hall, caused by a leak in the fire 
279 sprinkler system, to Northern Improvements for the amount of $8,640.00. Primex will 
280 reimburse the Town for the contract amount less the $1,000 deductible.
281 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
282
283 10.3 Transfer Station Campaign/Fundraising policy
284 Eric Slosek explained that recently, an inquiry was made to DPW asking what the 
285 campaign/fundraising policy for the Amherst Transfer Station was. Upon responding to this 
286 inquiry, DPW discovered that some minor updates were needed to the policy. The policy on 
287 file indicated the Board approved this policy. The policy was amended in 2010 and 2015. 
288 Notably, there were no Board signatures on the document. Spaces have been added for Board 
289 signatures. Additionally, section 3 of the policy was updated to state that any problems should 
290 be addressed to the "Lead Attendant", as opposed to the old policy which stated problems
291 should be addressed to the "weighmaster".
292
293 A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 
294 accept the update to policy number 9.3, "Amherst Transfer Station Policy for campaigning 
295 and fundraising", as amended on March 2, 2022.
296 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
297
298 10.4 Town Hall HRV plans
299 Eric Slosek explained that the DPW has been working with a consultant to investigate what is 
300 needed to introduce fresh outside air into the Town Hall building. The consultant used the
301 findings from a site visit to create a report, dated February 4, 2022. This report details
302 what is needed to introduce fresh outside air into the building through the existing
303 HVAC system. The DPW used this report to solicit proposals to provide the Town with
304 plans that could be used for bidding and construction purposes. Two proposals were received 
305 from local engineering companies. A third company declined to bid. Both companies stated 
306 that, upon the date of award, it would be 10-12 weeks before the plans are completed. Both 
307 companies also provided information for construction oversight services. However, that work 
308 will be solicited for independently from the design phase. DPW recommends awarding the 
309 design and creation of construction plans for this work to Team Engineering in the amount of 
310 $9,250.00. The desire is to move forward with this planning/design phase. Upon receipt of 
311 engineering plans, DPW intends to simultaneously send out RFPs for construction and for 
312 construction oversight engineering.
313
314 In response to a question from Selectman Pray, Eric Slosek explained that the intention is to 
315 use funds from the Building Maintenance budget line to do this work, however, there is a 
316 potential that it could also be worthy of ARPA funding.
317

Page 50 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 8 OF 11

318 In response to a question from Selectman Stoughton, Eric Slosek explained that the 
319 engineering company will determine whether an HRV or ERV system is best for Town Hall. 
320 These systems typically cost approximately $17,000-$18,000.
321
322 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Stoughton to 
323 recommend awarding the design and creation of construction plans for this work to Team
324 Engineering for the amount of $9,250.00.
325 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
326
327 10.5 Hiring for the position of EMT
328 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Stoughton to, 
329 at the recommendation of Chief Conley, approve the hiring of Ryan Sarratori for the position 
330 of part-time EMT.
331 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
332
333 11. Approvals
334 11.1 Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants
335 A MOTION was made by Selectman Stoughton and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
336 approve and sign the Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants due for April 1, 2022 as 
337 follows:
338 Phase I $ 2,055.96
339 Phase II $ 5,399.77
340 Phase III $ 6,772.19
341 Phase IV $ 4,809.03
342 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
343
344 11.2 Elderly Tax Deferrals
345 The following elderly tax deferral applications have been reviewed by the Tax
346 Collector and the Tax Collector recommends the approval of each application. Therefore,
347
348 A MOTION was made by Selectman Stoughton and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
349 approve and sign the Elderly Tax Deferral Applications for the 2021 property tax year as 
350 follows:
351 Map/Lot: 002-166-030 in the amount of $ 569.00
352 Map/Lot: 005-114-000 in the amount of $2,779.00
353 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
354
355 11.3 Assessing
356 Item A.
357 This is an Elderly Tax Exemption application for tax parcel 002-009, Unit-001. The Assessor 
358 reviewed the Application and determined the applicant does not meet the necessary 
359 requirements to re-qualify for the Elderly Exemption under RSA 72:39-a for tax year 2022. 
360 The applicant’s total assets exceed both the old and recently approved asset limits. Therefore,
361
362 A MOTION was made by Selectman Stoughton and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to deny 
363 the Elderly Exemption for tax year 2022 in the amount of $114,000.
364 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.

Page 51 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 9 OF 11

365
366 Item B.
367 This is an Elderly Tax Exemption application under RSA 72:39-a for tax parcel 007-087-003. 
368 Our Assessor has reviewed the application and determined it meets the income and asset 
369 limits and qualifies for the exemption and recommends approval. Therefore,
370
371 A MOTION was made by Selectman Stoughton and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
372 approve the Elderly Exemption for Map 007, Lot 087-003 in the amount of $104,200.
373 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
374
375 Item C.
376 This is a land use change tax release for Tax parcel 006-079-001. The lot was purchased by a 
377 new owner on 12/1/2021, is less than 10 acres, and no longer qualifies for current use. Our 
378 assessor has reviewed the release and recommends approval. The Land Use Change Tax in the 
379 amount of $13,300 represents 10% of the full and true market value of $133,000. Therefore,
380
381 A MOTION was made by Selectman Stoughton and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
382 approve the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $13,300 for Map 006, Lot 079-001.
383 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
384
385 Item D. 
386 This is an application for Current Use for Tax parcel 007-098-001. Our assessor has reviewed 
387 the Application and it appears the applicant qualifies for 3.38 acres to be placed in Current 
388 Use under RSA 79-A &amp; CUB 304.01. This 3.38-acre lot is contiguous with land in Mont 
389 Vernon that is presently in Current Use status and thus meets the qualifications for current use 
390 status. Therefore,
391
392 A MOTION was made by Selectman Stoughton and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 
393 approve the Current Use Application for Map 007, Lot 098-001 for tax year 2022.
394 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
395
396 11.4 AP, Payroll, Minutes
397 Payroll
398 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 
399 approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $214,889.55 dated February 24, 
400 2022, subject to review and audit.
401 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
402
403 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 
404 approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $219,749.24 dated March 10, 2022, 
405 subject to review and audit.
406 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
407
408 Accounts Payable
409 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 
410 approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $24,430.78 dated March 
411 2, 2022, subject to review and audit. (NH DMV)

Page 52 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 10 OF 11

412 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
413
414 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 
415 approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $3,037,685.00 dated 
416 March 1, 2022, subject to review and audit. (Schools)
417 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
418
419 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 
420 approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $5,107.98 dated February 
421 23, 2022, subject to review and audit. (Vendors)
422 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
423
424 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 
425 approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $6,182.15 dated March 1, 
426 2022, subject to review and audit. (Vendors)
427 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
428
429 A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 
430 approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $526,877.55 dated March 
431 1, 2022, subject to review and audit. (Vendors)
432 Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.
433
434 A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 
435 approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of February 9, 2022, as written.
436 Voting: 4-0-1; motion carried [B.S. abstaining].
437
438 A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 
439 approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of February 22, 2022, as amended.
440 Voting: 4-0-1; motion carried [B.S. abstaining].
441
442 A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 
443 approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of April 12, 2021, as written.
444 Voting: 3-0-2; motion carried [B.S. and D.P. abstaining].
445
446 A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 
447 approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of June 4, 2021, as amended.
448 Voting: 3-0-2; motion carried [B.S. and D.P. abstaining].
449
450 11.  Action Items
451 The Board reviewed its action items.
452
453 12.  Old/New Business
454 Selectman Grella explained that he recently attended a Heritage Commission meeting, where 
455 the Master Plan update was discussed.
456
457 Chairman Lyon welcomed Selectman Stoughton to the Board.
458

Page 53 of 54



BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2022.02.22

PAGE 11 OF 11

459 Selectman D’Angelo noted that the School boards will hold a joint meeting on March 24th.
460
461 Selectman Pray explained that the NRPC will meet on Wednesday.
462
463 Town Administrator Shankle stated that he taught in Ukraine at times during 2000-2004. He 
464 thanked the Board for its display of lights in support of Ukraine.
465
466
467 NEXT MEETING: Monday, March 28, 2022
468
469
470   
471 _________________________      __________________
472 Selectman Danielle Pray Date

Page 54 of 54


	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Public Hearing
	1. Pursuant to RSA 31:95-b: III (a), the Amherst Boar
	PRLF-17 Town of Amherst Approval Letter


	4. Citizens' Forum
	5. Scheduled Appointments
	1. Amanda Morse, Opportunity Networks Application for
	Op Network 5k Letter to Selectmen - Amherst Village
	Op. Network 5K Letter to Selectmen - request for road closing
	Op. Network 5K Mailer
	Town Comon Use app, Opportunity Networks

	2. Use of Town Common Application, MacLeod Celebratio
	Town Green request, McLeod Celebration of Life


	6. Administration
	1. Administrative Updates
	Staff Report

	2. PFAS Grant Application
	Staff Report
	BOS_03232022_Final_Application_packet


	7. Staff Reports
	1. Lease agreement with Turf Tank Athletic Field Pain
	Staff Report
	Please_DocuSign_Turf_Tank__Town_of_Amherst_

	2. Finance update
	Staff Report

	3. Cruiser Radio Purchase
	Staff Report
	20220321095052

	4. Police Dept. Tree Work
	Staff Report
	PD tree work award

	5. Seasonal Staff Wage increases
	Staff Report


	8. Approvals
	1. AP, Payroll and Minutes Approvals
	Staff Report
	2022.03.14 BOS_DRAFT dp_rvw


	9. Action Items
	10. Old/New Business
	 Adjournment
	 Next Meeting:  April 11, 2022

